





CONTRIBUTORS

H. Stevenson Balfour is a retired school master Hving at Georgeham .

Koy Coutin fives near Kingshridge and lectures on Local History for the W . F LA

aned the University Extra Mural Dept.

1E.J. Dvos is Professor of Urban History ab the University of Leicester.
[.4;. Leech is Warden ol the Cookworthy Museum nt Kingehridpe.

Sheila Stirling is Librarvian al the Devon and Excter Instilution,

R.L. Wilson is a retived business man Hving at Sidmoutly past Chairman of
the Council for the preservation of Sheffield antiquities.

Kolio Woods is Deputy Librarian at the faiversity of Southamplon,

The Amnual General Mecting of the Standing Conference for Devan History took
place at Fxeter University on Saturday, 12th May 1974 Basil Greenhill spoke
enterlainingly on 'Some asgpects of Marvitime History in Devon’ awl itlustented
hig lecture with slides.  In the afternoon the husiness muecting taok place. The
list of officers and members of the Council appears within the front caver,
Mra. J. Barber is now Vice-Chairman. Arvound eighty people were present,

Many thanks are tue to Professor Minchinton who made the arrangements [ov
the meeting and invited the spealers for this and other conferences.

The next Conlerence will take place al Bideford on Saturdoy, Brd November,
Geperal arrangements are as {or other conferences and the speaker will be
Apdrew Jewell Keeper of the Museum of English Bural Life nt Reading.

A lurther conference has been arvanged to take place at Totnes on February
28rel 1974 .

The next A .G.M. aof the Standing Conference will take place af Exeter on 4th
May, 1974,

IMAGES OF URBAN LITE IN THE NINETEENTH CENTURY

H. J. Dyns

The great divide in English local history 1s the nineteenth century. On the far
sicde of it stretches w scemingly interminable period in which it might be said
tirat history wias nothing without its iccality. The discevery and pursuit of
local history in that period hay immensely enriched and clarified not only the
meaning of countless individual communities but caused whole chapters of the
history of great events to be rowritten.

Far most of the places that once stood sufficiantly far apart for their history
to be tald as tales in themsaolves the nineteenth century brought confusion. It
was then that the traditional congruency between locality and community began
to break down, social networks to spread, and the older meaning ol community
to be supplemented by a dozen athers. To the local historian hoping to begin
his quest on his own doorstep and to cope with the changes brought to the
loeality and the community in the course of the last 150 years the challenge is
thercfore a formidible one. 8o much that was once formed by local factors

is now subject to less immediately discernible ones. 1If the heroic period of
English local history ended with the coming of the railway, the question for
local historians now is how to deal with the burgeoning citles they helped to
create.

The census books are some help in enabling the lecal hislorian to sge faces In
these urban crowds, but what these largely anonymous masses thought about what
was going on or how it felt to be undergoing these uphcavals cannot ever be
conjured from such statistics. For that we must look elsewhere.

Chesterton spoke of every brick in o cily having "as buman a hiereglyph as if it were
a graven brick of Babylon'and we ean now see how cnormously variegated the
visual archive belonging o the Victorian city is.

Tt supplements the more [amiliar literary (mages of the period, which for
contemperaries had the special task of enabling people to {ace the

inpseapable realitics of urban growth, That growth wus not only bewildering
but fascinating and even horrifyving, snd those writing directly about it

olfered imapes of civilising and unregenerative possibilitics --of caritas and
cupiditas -~ that were constantly dissolving into each othor. Most of the
visunl us well as literary images of urban experience in the nincteenth
contury were fugitive as well as complex and they had a technolopy of their
own, for the camera imposed subtle shifts of foeal distance; and mass journalism,
an urban invention of more insidious power, multiplied and divided them more
inserutably still. Nor must we forget that the urban artifact itself in this
perlod was a composition of complex Images, something that bad emerged not
only through the aceretions of earlier generations but in the teeth of vhsoure
architectural dinlogues amounting in the end to a veritable babel.

The interpretation of such a hody of evidence s full of pitfalis, even to
specialists expert in each of these visual vocabularies, lat alone to generalists
tike local historians who want to read as many of the human hieroglyphs

as they can, Sometimes the writing actually remains on the wall in more or
less truthful monumental inscriptions or in less overt archacologleal forms,
and the physical superstructure of a place often remains even now the maost
complete and least ambiguous document we have to the human happenings

of Lhe past,
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The testimony of artists, moagazine illustralors and photugraphers is more
tendentious because it is invarinbly filtered for us by editors {and lagturers)
wha shaw us only whilt they want us  to see, but its interest more certainly
arises [rom the [act thal such things onee represceated what their originators
helinved thely contemporaries should see.  In this vespecet they embody
pvidence ns to contemporary vulues and sociwl attitudes which are as vital
to the focal bistory of social change In the ninctecnth century as they ave te
its more general nanifegtations.

In this lncture almost all the slides -- about 80 of them ull teld -~ portray Images
belonging to Victerian urban life itself, either in the form of actual lantern slides
or stereocards, or of contemporary photographs, woodeuts und steel engravings
from popular magazines, posters, advertisements, strect ballads, drawings,

und paintings, chosen as much lo illustrate the astonishing richness and sigaificance
of such an archive a8 to provide a picterial commentary on its prineipat theme

of the Victorian city as the emblom nf maodernity, the arena in which the way

we live now was first embarked upon (o theme which has sinec been embodied

in the book The Victorian City: Iimoges and Realities, ed. . J. Dyos and
Michacl Wolff, 2 volumes, 1973} The starting peint for this must nevertheless

be a progress through a few of the principaltowns of Devon and Covnwall, looking
for the meaning of somn of the writing that is to be read on the walls of their
huildings, the symbolic cmbellishments and stylistic assertions of public and
commercial buildings, the manuments and parapheraalia of the streets,

Clearly, it is seldom possible to gather or convey such perceptive impressions

ns easily or confidenlly us one can the weil-found evidence of relinble documents.
But if local historians are to get to really clase grips with their subject in the
great ceatres of population ufter the railways came they must be prepared o
kandle more fragile evidence than they commonly have to do for carlier times.

Vet W. G. Hoskins has taught us how to grapple with the hidden history of the
hedgerow: H. P. R. Finberg with the nuances of placenames. There are some
social realities in contemporary and near-contemporary urhan history which
seem barely intelligihble cxcept by even less tangible means thn these, The
literary, artistic, architechwal, ubove all the popular images of lptterday
urban life hold, one feels, nwhole series of messages about the general
nceeptability of urban life and its local idfosyncracies - but they are mostly
still in code.

H. 4. DYOS

THE DEVON AND EXETER INSTITUTION LIBRARY

Shefla Stirling

The Deven and Exeter Institution possesses what is probably the most
comprehensive private library in Devon, if not in the West Country. The [irst
printed catalogue of the Institution Library appearved in 1516, three years after
it had been founded by Lhe "zealous endeavours” of certain local Gentlemen
concerned "to prevent the charactey of a County so favoured by natuye from
sinking helow the level of other distriets’, Thetr first aim was to establish
a library and museum for "promoting the gencral diffusion of Science, Literature
and the Arts, and illustratiog the Natural and Civil History of the County of Devon
and the History of the City of Exeter The Muscum happily soon faded out but
the library went [rom strength to strength. A century and a half latex, Lhe
Library's catalogue, that first slim volume baving long since grown to a tfozen
unwieldy guard-books, waa transformed into n motdern eard-index by dedicated

part-time workers. 4.

The library itself however had hecome lossilized:  fack of moncy meant
that fine hindings deteriorated on the shelves, shortage of space prevented new
growth or re-avrangement It was at this point that the Ingitulion . anxious
that the Lihrary should coatinee fo fulfil the mujor perpose of its founders, gained
the co-operation of the University of Excler in adminigtering the entlections,

A new policy was also decided:  the Library shoold bo developed as a Centre for
South-Westorn Siudies, {South Western is here defined as the Counties of
Devon, Cornwall, Borset and Somersel, and "Stedies” inelude not mevely the local
history of the four Countics, but geopraphy, peology, botary, lolk-lore and any
ather interests relevant to the South West),

In the first 10 years of its life, the {nstitution Laid out some 1, 006 o0 the
purcehase of books, When Richavd Uord, the author of the Handbook for Travellers
in Spain, the best travel book in the Bnglish language, was looking for @ house,
I setiled on Exeteor as the most pleasant of all Eoglish lowns in which to Hve.
Not the least of s attractions was the nstilation Library., He wrote to a {riend
in London that "this Pxeter is quite a capitel, abounding in all that Lenidon has,
exerpt its fog ond smolke. There g an exeellent nstitution here with a
woell-chosen lorge Library .. in which | take great pastime aud am beginning

my cduealion. ™ ile had afready become 2 member, and in 1805 beeame President
of the lastitution, an office which continues to this day. Many years later, in

the early 18908 poor George Gissing, who had come o live in Exeler, also found
the Library a lle-saver,

Gy the beginning of this century, when funds were apparently running dry.
the Libvary had grown to 40, 000 volumes. It was always intended to be a
worling relerenece Tibravy, not a bibliophile collection, and thanks to its carly
prusperity, i possesses substantial holdings of natural history, biography. -
vencalopy, heraldey . of course, many of the major county histories,
The loeal topographical material includes several scavee items, thouph quantitatively it
does not compare with coblections in the City and County Libraries.

Gaps are now being filled whevever possihle by buying widely in the various branches
of local studies. A recent large deposit of books has added to the Library's already
guod nuclous of souree material Tor genealogical studies, especially family histories

and parish registers.

Bound volumes of eighteenth and nineteenth century local newspapers are one of
the library's sirongest nssets. Now sholved downstairs to be easily accessible. they
include several long runs not obtatnable elsewhere in the South West.  Devonshice
Chroniele, 1831-145%;  Devon Weekly Times, 1863-1901; Westem Luminary
1513-1857; Western Times, 1831-1850; Woolmer's Dxeter Gavetie, T815-1501,
and at least two early ns not in the British Museum, Excter Merveury, 1714-1715;
Protestant Mercury, 1715-1717. {See L. Smitht  Devon newspapers: a finding-list)
The Library also pessesscs abong run of Trewman's Exeter Tlying Post from
1813~1897. It has # manuscript index to this Newspaper covering the period from
1743 onwards, compiled by the last editor. Manifeatly, thoere can be no cumplete
index to any tong run of newspapers, nor possibly any selective index that would not
rouwse spmeone' s fury for its omissions. Nevertheless, it is a most valuable guide
to a wide range of subjects covered by the newspaper over the space of 154 years
and is lhe {irst necessary sbep in any scarch,

Maps, like newspapers, ave indispensable to Tocal stwdics and the Institation
has a useful collection all card-indexed, The most impartanl single dem is &
complete set of the 1st edition of 1:500 Survey of Excter {1874). Recent purchases
include a complete set of the 217 OL8. maps for the four comntics and 2 number of 17
geologteal maps.
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Local histovy cannot be studied in isolation fram national history,  The
Inatitution is fortunate in possessing a good collection of State Papers and of such
fundamental sevies as the Statutes of the Realm and the volumes published by the
Record Commission and the Historie Manuseripts Commisgsion. Many ol these
"hackground' volumes (e.g  Palgrave's Parcliamentary Writg) are not to be found even
in the Universily Library. The Library conlinues to acquire geneval background
material essentinl [or more detailed work on the South West.

Not surprisingly in view of its nature and origing, the Institution also
possesses extensive sets of 19th century periodieals e.g. Genlleman's Mapazine,
1IT31-1870;  calendars e.g. Amnual Register, 1758-1898, and professional lists
e.f. Avmy List, 1848-1898; Nayy Gist, 1850-1902; Clerpy List, 1850-18b9;
Law Li remarkable richness of biographical source

, 1849-1897, which provi
material Yor the Victorian period. Il also possesses long runs of the Oxford
University and Cambridge University Calendars, from 1819-1892.

What is increasingly rare today, the Library is stilt privately owned and
largely maintained by the subscriptions of members. [n recent years the Devon
County Council and Exeter City Couneil have made pencrous geants towards the
repair and Binding ol both haoks and newspaper files, and the Yurge back-log of
neglect {due to a period of poverly) is now being rapidly overcome.

Membership of the mstitution eosts £4, 00 per member, and £2, 00 for any
additional member of the same family. Special arrangements exist for University
Staff and Postgraduates, and for senior members of the County and City Libravy
Staff. Visitors are weleorme to inspect the library, hat for continued research
facitities, temporary membership, at a eost of £1 per month is vequired.

The libravy is open on every weekday except Saturdays from $.15a.m - 5.30 p.m.

The Institution building in the Close is itself one of the major historic
monuments of Lxeter, it was formerly the grand town house of the cavis of

Devon {the Couvlenays) and the shell is substantially the late madineval house they knew.

In 1813, when the Devon aud Exeter Institution took over Lthe premises, the house
naturally had to be exteasively remodelicd for libvary purposces. For example,
the present Outer Library wus formerly the large front paviden of the Courtenays'
house, and the Inner Library was their Great Hall, The nedineval bav-out has
disappeared except to thuse who study the old plan made in 1764 which hangs in the
Library, and the almosphere is now puve early nincteonth century. Most old
libraries have such an atmosphere, redolent of gonerations if not centuries ol
scholarship. The Devon and Exeter Institution possesses it to a high degree
whether oue wishes to engage in serious reading, or onc wishes merely to escape
from the eeming streets of Exeler - even in the Close during the summer - wnto
the peace and qutet of a civilised past,

New Addresses

Devonshive Association. History Section, Secretary: Mrs. W. Woodham, Fial
3, Moon Vallev, Viearage Road, Sidmouth,

Devonshire Association, Tiverton Branch, Sceretary: R.H., Webster, 20 Park
Roud, Tiverton.
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THE DEVON RISTORIC BUILDINGS TRUST

Walter Minchinton

In the past decade reglisation has grown that if our hevitage of huildings is
to be prederved, some public action is necessacy. I'or the most important
buildings grants are fairly readily available. The maintenance of castles,
country houses and eathedrals (s now recognised as a malter for national concern.
But the full guality of tandscape and townscape can only be maintained if lesser
buildings, some of which may not in themselves be ol great architectural importance
but are vital for the part they play in a greater whole, ave kept in good heart,

And the matter hog acquired greater urgency as the activities of the bulldezer and
the earth mover range more widely over our land. Moveover older nildings
are disappearing at an alarming rate beenuse it is often cheaper to build anew than
to repair and restove. Lincoln, Exeter and Worcesler are historic cities

where the ravages of planners and commercial developers have equalled or outrun
the vavages of war. To meet this challenge historic building trusts have been
eslablished in various counties in England while the National Trust in Scotland
performs this function,

The recent establishment of a trust in Devon is largely «due to the initiative
ol the Devon Congervation Forum. The suggestion that a Devon [istorie
Buildings Trust ghould be set up was then welecomed by the Devon County Couneil
which bas made its formation financially possible. After some camplicated and
delicate negotiations the Devon Historic Buildings Trust was formally established
at a meeting held in the Great Hall of the University of Exeter on § July 1973,
As the first historic building trust to be set up in England in support of Europem
Congervation Year 1975 this event was warmly weleomed by Lady Dartmouth on
behalf of the UK Executive Committee for Buropean Archifectural Heritage Year.

The eouncil of management of the Trust is headed by the Lord Lieutenant,
Lord Robavough, and consists of elected representatives and specialist members.
The clected representatives ave Colonel J.E. Palmer, the present chairman of
Devon County Council, Charles Ansell, the chairman of the new Devon County
Council, W.H.3. Ayre {who is chairman of the Trust) and E.R. Day.
[Dr. A. Robinson Thomas represents the Devon Conservation Forum and the three
specialist members are A. Hollow, Professor W.G. Hosking and P'rofessar
W, Iz, Minchinton. The Standing Conference for Devon History is thus strongly
represented on this new body, The clerk to the Devon County Council,
C.%. Luecas, acts as legal adviser to the Trust while the County Treaaurer,
0. A, Saunders, is the Trust's honorary treasuarer. For ecomomical operation
andl administrative convenience. John Mejor, the secretary of the Devon
Conservation Forum, acts as Secretary of the Trust and is supported by clerical
assistance now financed jointly by the Forum aml the Trust.




The Devon Historic Duildings Trusl will operate on the revolving fund
principle.  The inteation is for it to buy properties which are in danger, either
through threat of demeolition or neglect, to use its funds to restore them and then
te resetl such properties with appropriate safepguards. The proceeds from
such sales will then be used Lo purchase further properties.,  The Trust will
thus reqiire money for two purposes; fo pay its administrative staff and to
finance the purchase and vestoration of properties. To start the Trust off
the Devon County Council has made an initial grant of €25, 000 and has promised
an annual grant of £5, 600 for the continuance of the Trust's activities,
1t is hoped that the three county boroughs - Exeter, Plymouth and Torbay - will
also make grants as well as the smaller local government authorities such as
urban and rural districts and parish councils, But it is not intended that the
Trust should be entirely financed from public funds. Rather il is hoped that
industry, charitable foundations, commercizal concerns and individuals will
contribute generously to the Trust, With a county the size of Devon the
problem is clearly enormous. Welcome though it is, the initial grant from the
County Couneil to establish the Trust will ¢learly do no more than enable one
property to be purchased. If any effective work is to he done in Devon,
much more money i5 necessary. I the Trust could command L250, 000 or
£ 500, 000 then some real and immediate impact could be made on the problem.

The technical panel of the Trust, which consists of the three specialist

members advised by officers of the County Council, has already had several meetings

and has considered over 40 properties but so far has not been able Lo find a suitable
property for purchase. Before the Trust was set up, Devon County Council

had acquired Ireland House, Ashburton, to restore and resell it on the same basis
as the Trust will operate and this preject is now going ahead. But even in its
short life the Trust has not been entively without effect. One property owned
by a local authority in the county is now being restored by that authority as a result
of the interest expregsed by the Trust which indicated it wished to purchase and
restore the property.

To establish appropriate criteria is not easy but the Trust has decided that
amongst its initial guidelines to decide what properties should be considered for
purchase ave the following:

{1y  That preference should be given to listed buildings since their listing
indicates that they have already been graded as huildings of some imporiance.
Nevertheless it is clear that not all buildings in the county which merit listed
status do in fact appear on the lists so {t may well happen that properties
which are not listed will e considered.

{2)  That the property or properties should be visually important. At an early
stage it is certainly important that the Trust should not only take action but
be seen to be taking action

(3 That the property should be vacant. If it is not delays and complications
will inevitably arise.  In fact cccupancy has already posed problems in
some cases which the Trust has congidered.

{4)  That the property should be saleable after restoration, If the revolving
fund principle iz to operate it is obviously important that any properties the
Trust restores can be sold in order that the Trust can continue its activitics.

{5 Thal the property is incapable of restoration under other grant procedures.
Grants are available from other sources, hoth national and local, for the
restoration of certain buildings. The intention, quiteé property, of the
Trust is to supplement what is being done in other ways in order to make the
available resources po as far as possible.

But the Trust hopes that the elfect of its activities will not he confincd Lo the
purchase and sale of properties. ft hopes that its efforts will also encourage by
competitive emulation private owners, industrial and eommercial ficms and others
to play thetr part in preserving the historic architectural heritage of Devon.

Although the Trust has its own small staff and can eall on the County for a
timited amount of specialist help, the interest and coneern of the public at large
1% also necessary if the Trast is o operate effectively. Because Devon is such
a large coundy, i Is that much more difficult to keep a walch on development.,
BEarly warning by members of the public of demolilion or of neglect witl be therefore
most welcomae. Indeed suggestions of propertics for consideration by the technival

ponel will be netively considered, The Devon Historic Buildings Trust exists to serve

the people of Doevon, It will be the move effecltive, the more Devon men and women
both subseribe Lo its funds and acl as ils earvs and eyes. Will any member of the
Staneting Confevence for Devon [istory who comes across suitable properties for
purchase by the Trust kindly Iet the Secretary, John Mejor, (Devon Historic
Buildings Trual, Bradunineh Hatl, Castle Street, Fxeter) or me know 7

"A LETTER FROM MY AUNT™ OR A STUDY IN GENEALOGY

by [h stevenson Balfour

Pirandello wrote "Six characlers in seareh of an author' but this is the tale
ob one character in search of an aneestor.

It ol started with the turning up of o letter from my aunt, weilten about 1925,
among seme family papers, to hey sister, my mother, and which contained some
intepesting information ubout hor molher, my grandmother, which [ considered
wanted looking into and checking,

The letber montioned among other facls thol the grandrothor!s father was
i Dy Heovy Burnoy and bher grent aunt was Fanny Burney: together with the
staterment that the said De. Heney had oweried Admirval Searle's danghter in
tee " Viclory™, This last statement sounded fishy and started the downward path
of checking, Lhe result of which was many years of vesearch and much trouble
but with the wmain fact unsoived.

Luckily the marriage of Dr. Henry came within the denlings of Somerset
House so a letter produced Lhe marriage cevtifiente from whieh it was
discovered that he bad mavried o Captain Searle's davghter at Portsea Church
in the county of Southampton and that his father was William Burney:  the
service being taken by his brother, the Rev. Edward Burney, It also wave the
fact that he was a widower., Other socurces gave that Captain Searle was the
captain of H, M. 8, Victory so that il is more than likely that the reception took
place theve, also he did become an admiral.  Thus two facts were established.




A search ol the Usts of the graduates of Oxford and Cambridge at the
Bxeter Cily Library ghwve some information. Henry Burney was at Sicdney
Sussex, Cambridge and was the 4th son of William Burney, LL.D. of
Gosporl, Hants, and that the Rev. Edward was the 5th son and later head-
master of the Royal dMilitary and Naval Academy at Gosport. Unforbunately
Willizm Burney was at neither of the bwo universities otherwise his father's
name would have been given and the probhlem solved.

The next step was a search through the valumes of the Gentleman's
Magazine af the North Deven Athenaeum which gave, among other entries
on the Burneys, that Dr. Charles Burney, Mus. Do¢. and the father of
Fauny had eight children and seven of these could be aceoumted for so giving
rise to the hope that William was the edghth.

Volume 102 gave the date of William's death, Febroary 20th, 1832 and that
he was a LI..D. From wnather source this was found Lo be an Honerarvy
degree given to Mm by Aberdeen. A lebter to the incumbent of Portsea Church
which was sent on le the archivist at Southampton gave n reply which quoted
"The Story of Gosport" in which William was deseribed as an Ao M. Maths,

This was a vseful picee of information which resulted in lotters, with stamped
envelopes tor reply, being sent to the Universities which were in existence at
that time, middle or late 18th century, Unfortunately this wus completely
negative, he had not heen to any of them or at least no record existed. 3o where
did he get his degree?

A vislt [o the Socicty of Cenealogists to search their records produced the
fnfurmation that a William Burney had been teaching at King Edward’s Scheol
at Southiuupton for five years and that he left in 1788, The Gentleman's
Magazine had already given that a Willinon Burney had married a Miss Closson
in Souwthampton in that year. Same man? 50 a letter to the Hampshire Record
Cifice ot Winchester was senl to ask Lhem to chock the Bishop's transcripts of
the Churches of Southampton which were in existence at that time, (Crockfard
ad given their names) in the hope that the bridegroom's father’s name was
given hut with no luck.

The Gentieman's Mugazine gave the name of the bride, Miss Priscilla
Clofton {Clossen), bul the transcripts gave the Chrislinn names as Seling
fouisa, Miss Cash ol the Hampshire Record Office was kind cnough 1o
telephone the Southampton office to check the original entries in the registers
and they were the samao.

The Hampshirve Record Office gave mc the addrvess of the Hampshire
Chronicle officns and a letter to them produced a copy of the obituary of
Willilam Burney but alas did not name his father.

A request to Somerset House for the will of Dr. Charles Burney, Mus,
Doc, proved negative but they sent the letter on to the Record Office, but
with no resuit except that they recommended a letier to the Humpshire Office
with the above result,

A letier to the Record Office In Chancery Lane resulted in photostat
coples of the consus returns for 1841 and 51 which gave useful information
but, of course, no informatlon on William who had died in 1832, bul it dld
say that Edward™s wife was bora in Wales and a sister in Africo.
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As Dir. Charles had boon an ovganist at King™s Lynn a letleor o he
incumbent plus a small fee resulted in the information thal the only entries
in the regisiers were those of Charles and Susanna Elizabeth Burpey,
Fanny's brother and sister. “Tanny Burney! by Austin Dobson states Lhat
she was born at King's Lynn, an ervor for Lyme Rogis.

S0 there the enguiry rests with no positive result, but with a [air amount of
new information aboul the Burney family and how to scarch.

Mow it could be rightly said "What has this (o do with Devon pnd e Bovon
Historian?™ Bul Lear Admival Searle was the son of James Searie of
Sladdlescombe, Devonsbire and he married in November 17946 Ann, duughier
of Jeseph daddack of Plymouth Dockyard ond Tamerton Folliott.  In the
north aisle of Lhe church there 18 3 stone to a Mr. Samuel Maddock which reads,
"lere Iyeth the body of Mr, Samuel Madock of Plymouth, merchant, by his lady
vo Honble 1sobella, daughter of ve Right tHonble, Warwlick Lord dehun, who died
ve 2 December 1713, also Mrs, Catherine Madock his daughter whe died yo 25
Ang. 3712 in ye 15th year of her age. So there is a connection with Dovon.

Dr. Charles Burney

-__ = P - - - - = 7

T T !
Fanny Burncy Charles susanna
Burnay Turney

Willinm Burhey

Admiral Searle m Selina
m Ann Maddock Ciofton
| i
Y Searle m Henry Burney Edvard

New Society

The Qkehampton Community Coliege Loeal History Society. DMeets at Tenby
Nouse, Okehampton at 7.30 p.m. on the lirsi Toesday of each month, Iks
phiject is the study of local history geoerally bub in pavticular that of the
Okehampton area.  Secretary: Mrs England,




THE QLD GRAMMAR SCHOOL, KINGSBRIDGE AND THE COOKWORTHY
MUSEUM
.G, LEECH

The vesidents of the South Hams today owe a debt of gratitude to two
Kingsbridge boys, who left their homes to seek their fortunes elsewhere. In
1719, William Cookworthy, then aged 15 and one of the six children of a poor
Guaker widow, walked to Londen to become an apprentice at the Plough Court
Pharmacy of another Quakevr, Sylvanus Bevan. He later returhed to Devon,
and with the assistance of his late masters seb up In business in Plymouth as
i wholezsale chemist and druggist,

A little less than 100 years earlier, Thomas Crispin journeyed to Exeter
to be apprenticed to George Shapeott, fuller. He became a successful merchant
and a prominent citizen, being described as "One of those public benefactors,
founders of schools and alms houses, who did for Exeter what Gresham
accomplished in Lendon and Colston in Bristol™ In 1832 he became a Freeman,
and in 1670 built and endowed a Grammar School in the main street of Kings-
bridge to provide a good education for the poor boys of the lown.

This inscription still remains over the arched entranee .......

This Grammar Scheol was
Built and endowed 1670

By
Thomas Crispln of ye City of

Exon, Fuller, who was born
in this Town, ye 6th of Jan 1607-8,

Lord what 1 have thou gavest me
And of thine owne this I return to Lthee.

[n 1931, when the Local Educalion Authority opencd the new Grammar
School at Westville, the original foundation censed. There is good reason fo
helieve that Cookworthy was a pupil ot Crispins School, but the link hetween
the tvo men was forged anew in 1970 when after o period of considerable
success with upwards of 150 pupils on the register at one time, the school
presented a sad and grimy face to Fore Strect. Pigeons nested on the stairs,
in dormitories and in the gutters, and damp and decay were taking their toll.

The large main schoolroom on the fivst floor, a duplicate of one at Etion,
still retained an air of grandeur with its panels carved with the initials of
genarations of Kingsbridge hoys. The carvaed canopy, with the Royal Coat of
Arms of 1870 still discernible above the Headmaster's seat, remained as a
meoemerial to the many men who had spent their days in educating and training
hays for a fuller life, DBut as various proposals for the use of the building
were exaumined and rejected, it seemed as though the building was destined
for eventual demolition to make way for a ear park, office block or super-
market,

But a local resident, Mrs. Evelyn Northeott, had long known the history
of William Coolworthy and of his discovery in Cormwall of kaolin and china-
stone. This culininated in his patent taken out in 1768, "o make, use,
exercise and vend a kind of Porcelain newly invented by me, composed of
Moor-stons and Growan-clay". This was the "true' or hard paste porcelain,
the porcelain of the East, and a collection of items from his manufactory at
Coxside is to be seen in the Plymouth Museum.
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Knowing the need in Kingsbridge for a centre of culturat aciivity
incorporating & loeal Muscum, Mrs, Novtheoll weote to the English Chine
Clay Compity ot 8L Austell, asking if they could not help to ereote oovalid
use for the building, and in se doing, honour the man, who through the
discovery of Lhis zealously guarded sceret, was a founder of their ndustry,
Thelr response was to purchase the Old School, and to lease it at o nominal
renl to the Willinm Coolavorthy Museumwm Society, to make Funds availahile for
its restoration, and to promise an annval donalion.

A packed public meeting in the Town Hall applouded this gesture, g
managemant conumittee was elected, and with the determined help of a number
of people the building was avallable in Qciober 1971, and the Museuwm was
opened by Lord Aberconway, Chairman of the English China Clay Company in May,
1972, In this way, the Old Grammar Schoal, having once before plaved a
vitod part in the Community, look on o new lease of life.

One caters the Muscum inte the splondid Big School Room. Here the
English Chint Clay Company have mounted an exhibition relating to Willlam
Cookworlhy, and the work of the elay industry from the mid 19th century
until teday - phetographs, tools and documents are effectively displayed
under the watehful eve of Thomas Crispin whose full length porteait hangs
an the wall.

Close by is a room once uscd by the 6th Torm, in which the Old Boys
have palkored together relics of the school romembered by many of them,
schoel uniform, reminders ol speech days and school plays, ingpectors
reports and lean pholographs. The Loeal Histery room is not large, hut
space has boen found ko reeall something of the work-a-day life of
Kingshridge in the late 19th Century, shiphuilding tools and paintings of the
fruit sehooners, fowidry and hasket mokers tools, o magnet for the
children, o working model of a waler driven corn mill, typical of the 40
mills which once worked in the steep sided South Hams valleys. The wall
hung panels of photographs ave a great attraction; a nostalgic glimpse of
Iife hefore the motor car, when the quays were husy with the bustle of
trade and nob eor parks, as now, and when sheep were sold in the streets.

Kitchons are very much an attraction in Musenms loday, and that at the Okd
Grammar School with its slate flagged floor, dressers, scrubbed table and vast
vange east af the Kingsbridge foundry, is the scene of much reminiscing, Bevend
in the scullevy the copper, dolly tub and mangle recall steamy washdays, and
the dairy section is well sel put with butter churn and tul, separator and eream
skimmers. The white washed walls of the cobbled passageway show the collection
ol smull farm bets and implements to advantage.  Such is the rapid change in the
waethods of husbandry that many were in use until quite recently.

Last yeor 6,000 visitors cume to the Museum, a figure which will be easily
cxeeedod this year, and an added attraction will he the newly opened Costume and
Print Room.  The Gld Grammar School has @ dual purpose, and during the winter
when the Museum iy closed life still continues in the building with some 600
people o week coming for day and evening clusses arranged by the Comununity
College, and for lectwres and meetings spousored by loeal ovginisations. Over
500 people have subseribed to the Beciety, and with the support of English China
Clays Lid., Local Authorities, and the Aren Muscum Council, the Old Grammar
School s destined to play 2 major role in the community; a role surely in keeping
with the idealism and example of Thomas Crispin and Willlam Cooloworthy.
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TALATON, TAPHOUSE, TOPHOUSE OR FAIRMILE MILL
R.E. WILBON

Just to the North of the crossing of the reitds from Houiton to Exctor and
Otiery St Mary to Cullompton, in the valley of the Tale, Lributory of the Rivar
Otter, there was o water mill until some date between the wars,  (Map refercnce
SY 08GOTAY. It Iay within the Manor of Talawon not far from its southern boundary.

Documentary pavticulars are w be found in the Kennasvay papers in the
Devon County Record Offlce. Willinm Kennaway, Esg. of Exeter, ab an Auction
ar Dscot in 1795, o}.ltuiueit)! A twenty-one years lease of the tithes, mills, premisas

and appurtensnces ol Taphouse Grain Mills for £780. The lessors were the Ri.
Hon. Sir (eorpe Yonge, Bart, K.C. 8., P.C. af Escol and his wife Dame Ann,
Walter Palk and Rabert Abraham,

An Escot Fstute account hook of 18034 has many cntries for work on o toew
milt, for the remuneration of millwright, carpenters, blacksmilh, sawyer,
labottrers, apprentices and a thatcher. There woere charges Tor vreed for thalching

o

and for limber and For cartage. 1t cost 11/- Lo carey thirty-two burr stones {32{“
ewt. ) and hoop iron from Otterton. [f these enlries refer to the recently
digmantled mill they confirm the estimate of the age of the machinery. On the
other hand thoy may vefer to o small mill at Escol Home Farm.

At the Tithe Commutation ol 1839 Siv Jobn Kennoaway was ownor of the
property Hie tenant being William Vigors. He reaced the mill, house, garden,
orchard and closes amounting to abouwt fen acres. e scems to have been
succeeded by George Vigers (sic.) who was in possession in 1943 when Stephen
Yollund of Ashburtvn, miller, became tenant.  Uis tenancy agreement sots out
fully what was expected, [t was on a yeariv basis with o yvear's notice on
either side, ithe rent being £70.  Amoung other things Sir John rescrvod the
right to all gane and the fish Yox oo the promdses with liberty o enter and
draw the hateh whenever he thought proper provided the mill was not aetually
at worlke, for the purpose af catehing the (ish,

{1 The name Taphouse might ho due to the mill's proximity to the 1nn ot
Fairmile.

{2)  Imports [rom France.

It was his obligation to have the mill in tenintalde repair ot the commencement
of the term, to the satisfaction of the Talaton huilder Joseph Carter. The tenant had
1o keep the mill and the mill leat with ibs banks and hatches, as far as a lately
grocted weir, in good order and also the ditches and watorcourses next to the voad
[voimn Fairmile to Talaton and the drains [rem the house and mill.  But if the weir
were washed nut by floods thus preventing the use of the mill there would be a
reduction in the rent.

A postscript to the deed provided for a new wheel when required to he
provided by the landlord.
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The water wheel was rewoved in 1367 and the mil) building was stripypad ol
machinery and converted 1o o private bouse in 10710 From photographs Lnken by
Mr, P.G. Stansell, the bulldev, this was a beaditional type prist mill with two pairs
of stones in position and provision for a third puiv. The axle eonnvctiog the pit
wheel to the water wheel was fron, estimated as cight inches square, suggesting
construction In the early part of the 19th contury.

Edward Eveleigh was the Miller by L1845, An accounl took trom that date
ke 1861 has foptunately survived in the possession of bis grandsen, Mre. 5 F.
Eveleigh of Foxenhole or West Hill Mill. The hook records sales of all Lhe oulprat
of a grist mill, some farm produce md charges for milling. 1t s thus a vecord
of facome only, there being no indieation of the sources of the grain grouad nor
of any running cxpenses lor maintenance of the mill or fer carting, A Sele
reference to wages is shown on loose papors s deductions from gonds purchased
by a Mrs. Gilpin - Flour, mezb, sharps and lard,  Her rate of pay was three
shillings o week,

There are 238 faolseap pages in the hook, of which 220 sre fully covered
with recovdd, 1 is bound 0 a rathey Oimsy board with machled paper cover
whitrh hus been vepaired by linen slrips covering the spine and edges. Pasted
on the cover Toth front and back with their wrilten sides hidden are sheels of
fine specimen penmanship written by II, Eveleigh, one dated May 1837, The
pages were waumbered and there is no index.

Only ndne cuslomers are recorded in 1845 - four of whom were had deits,
3o presumably an older account book was (b use concurrently, Iy the following
vear there were nineteen names and this numbar grew year by year up to fifty-
seven M 1461 when milling entvics ceased, Of the sarly customers only three
wore still on the books at the end.

Complete identification of the customers is not possible. The 1850 an
1857 directorics show e loeations of sbme.  Among them were several from
Ottery-St. Mary, mombers of the Coleridge funily, J. Durrough o haker, J.
fveleigh and possibly My. Davy, surgeon, and nthers.

This town had its own corn mill, nlongside the silk mill, maenaged in 1850 by
Willinm Smith, Ciher neighhouring mills waere ab Fenilon roughly two miles to

the Fast, Talownter tea-and-n-hall to the Morth,with Olttery tvo miles to the South,
Thus Brward Eveleigh had competitors on three sides. To the Wosl were no streams
sulficient o v o mill and many of the moye distant customers came from that
direction.

Growth of the business and the patronape of clerpy mnd gentry indicate that
Eveleich was o respecied and Lrustworthy milier. Probably he loased or rented
the mill feom Sic dohn Keansway of Exeot and Lovrd of the Manor whose account
opened in 1348 and continted through the boel,  Siv L Farvington, Part, of
Crosford House, Col. B.J. Honewwood of Whimple, Mrs. Buller of Strect Raleigh,
Sohn Collin of Cadbay, F.J. Coleridge, solleitor, of Ottery and W. H. Dunsford
i Hoekheoare Court,  Amang the Iaity, mnd mnong the clergy the Revs, J, Eilintt
and H, Nicholls, reclovs of Payhembuvy and Rockhesare, L.V, welland and C- AL
Hoggan, reelors of Talaton, Henvy Sanders, Rural Deun of Avinsheare, T, Hill
and J. Furnival, perpeteal Curates of Eseot and other mambevs of the cloth,
Favourod Eveleiph with thelr grinding vequivements. Farmers, bakers, medicul
wen, tradesmen and others were other regular purehasers.  Of the voc hundred
and ten customers numaod in the aecount ook the Toeations of sixty five have been
traced.  Sevenieen came From Whimple parish, tvelve from Rockheare, cleven
from Taluton and four Iront Ayiesheare all Lo the west of the wmill.  Of the others
ten were in Ottery St. Mary parish to the south and the remainder nearhy in
Eaeot Gosford and Taleford. - 15



Almost ail the transactions were small and in & few cases very froquent.
TFor instance, in the vears 1856 to 1860 Sir M. Farrington made an average of
sixty~five purchascs in a yeav mostly of bwo pecks of meal, balf 2 peck of flour
or half a sack of bran at a time. tle lived but a mile from the mill, Sir John
Kennaway also bought harleymenl af two pecks a time or a bushel of bran for
the house, In 1861 he was charged for American Flour at 19s. 04, u bushel,
indicating the importation of grajn.

Oats

By far the lurgest transactions were in grinding and dressing wheat,
probably grown on 8ir John's estates, the chavge for eight bushels (a guarter)
being Gs. O, or 9d. o bushel. For barley it was only -d.

Meal

A separate account was kept for supplies to his stahles of half to one
suck of hean or ong or two pecks of barley meal ot a time.  1p to 1850 these
avcounts weee noted as 'Settled ol Court', no doubt at the Manor Court when
Fveleigh woent to pay his rent. i

Wheat

grinding to have been £272 in the forvmer and £263 in the iatter year.

Figures extracted for 1852 and 1857 show the income from sales and 8
Quantities of the products millad expressed in hushels are given in Table 1,

Such income would bavdly secom enough fo cover the cost of his purchases
of grain and rent and other charges. There 1s o noto in the Sales Book dated June
20th, 1848

Pollard

"Amount of rates for Talaton Mills
£ H. .

Rent G2, 10, 0.
Annual Value . A,
Atnount rated to poor 24 0.
Ottery do, Ao 16,

Tithe 10,
Lot Tax 1.

Flour

in Talle 2 the prices charged are set out. ‘They tended to decreoase when
grain wis plentiful after harvoest. The Corn Iws Fixed the price of wheat al
eighty shillings the quacter. After their repaal in 1846 landowners feared for
their large profits but prices kept high for twenty years thereaftor antil the era J

Bran

of the cheap loaf came iu with the floading of the market with American grain,

ANNUAL QUANTITIES THROUGH THE MILL IN BUSHELS TABLE 1
5

Here then was & mill of modest propo rtions with fow substantial cuslomers !l
as Table 3 shows.

Sha

Barley Meal
and Barley
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VALUE OF SALES AND NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS IN A YEAR TABLE 3

Over £14 L0~ €1 Pnder £1 Tatal
L3 2 10 i 18
1458 k an 12 39
18G7 £ 25 3 s}
18{1 K 23 28 a7

Now and then there is an entry for cutting ehaff and grinding beans and Nex
(sic) seed and, no doubi, the wheel drove o cider mill for pulping npplqs from the
orchard, Sales were made to o Mr. Knight of an cighteen gallon cask for Ss. el
and ds. 5d. for earringe and another coisk al €1 6s. G Messrs, Hikee of Ottery
boupht Teur hogshends b €1, 4s. (d, in August 1861 and one at L1 105, i._l(i. at Lhe
sale lator in the spmwmer of 1861, which ek place when Edward Bveleigh gave up
his tennncy and moved o West Hill or Toxenbole Mills.

Thereafter the ledeer was used to record b preduee from 1872 to 18385 -
bulter, cheese, apples and meal, The price of pigs varicd hetwoeen 98, anid 13s.
with an old sow at 10s, and bulloeks abowt 1ds. the seove, The price ol calvos wis
from Tid. and 84 and lambs 8de o pound.

Millers following Eveleigh were John Wright, Jesse Daker and H. H. Baker
who is shewn in the 1926 girectory. Milling is thought to bave coased by then.

Y
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LOCAL HISTORY RESEARCL ACTIVUTIES 1N THE SOUTH HAMS 1072 -19T

Kay Coutin

1, DMiss C. Micholl, Loddiswell '
Continuing search of dechinecatary sourees for
fumilies.

history of the Parish and local

Mr. Wilkins, Stokeaham, and Toreross. ) o
Has written a shout history of Stokenham Church md is new golog through

various Parish documents.  He has a coloction of LHdes and pltiographs

of unusual (eotutes of Devon churches.

[

3. Canon J. B, Hoskins, Malborough. _
Studying the history of Malborough and its church for a compreiasive
account, AL prosent compiling o list of curates.

4, Mr. Tobey, Chillington. _ o '
Assisted Professor Minchinton in the search for water-mill sites, leaeabing
53, and photographing many, In the 5. Houmws, Cast of Modbury., He i:f" e
attempting to fiud a permanent home for o set of mill machinery, if possible
in the Kingsbridge loeality.

T M. Al Chikty, Collupil. o _ )
flas given oecasional lectures on lime-kilng, their history, design and asc,
{llustrated by slides dizgroms and drawings,

1ty -

.

g.

David Murch, salcoembe,
Further work an the lacation and identiffeation of wreeks. Supervised a stuey
of 10th cenfury Ships' Logs during the winter. :

Mr. & Mrs. Curry, Saleombs,
The history of Salcombe Castle [rom =il available sources, and illustrateed
with photographs, old prints, old posteards and maps.

Mrs. Arnold, Woembury,
Collecting material rolated to the History of Wewbury, include some tape-
recordings of local recollections.

Malborough and salcombe Iocal Hixtory Group.

During the winter we have had about 25 people 2t work, under the auspices
of the W. E. A, We are fortunate in having resident experts Canon  Hoskins
(ducuments) and David Murch (Maritime) to  assist us.

Dr. Shapland has supervised the recording of Lthe Tombstones in the deserted
churchyuard wt South Huish, uwnd ot Malborough, of which 3 copies have hoen
made, suitably cmbellished with illustrations. Some analysis has heen done
and notes made of the most popular epitaphs. Cross references have baen
nmuade with the sections studying the registers and mapitime history.

A number of loeal decds were examined by Mrs. Morris, Ratson. These were
17th and 18th century. A resumé af these was made, with notes of
associations with local families,

A demographic survey has been started, using the Parish Rogisters, and
following the suggceations made by the Cambridge Group, who have supplied
the Torms.  When the work has progressed ((f proved much slower thun
anticipaled) we intend to draw graphs fo illustrate the population trend. A
question avises whether the number of men lost at sea had @ significant
effcer on opulation in Ehis aren.

A literacy survey was made, using the 19th contury Marriage Register.
Detween 1837 and 1844 53% ware literate to the extent of signing the
register. From the same source @ list of oecupations was made, which
provided more information for the Maritime section.

Mr, Foirweather, whose family owned the Salecombe Gazette, broupht a
sumber of carly hound yolumes of (he piper. An index of thase has been
startad, Mr, Fairweather has a large colleetion of early phoatographs
and posteards, maony of which he has put on slides.

Diraper's accounts of 1832, belonging to Mrs. Gelder of Adams, Tore Street,
Kingshrithre, weore examined and some analysis i3 to be attempted.

The route of o ship trading from sSalcombe to the Caribbean was traced
and the results with notes and embellishments shown on a map of the
Atlantie.

The study of Farmhouses and Cottages in the area continues. We have a
number of plans, notes, photographs and skeiches, which we hope will be
a contribution to the knowledge of vernacular avchitecture in the region.
We ure now roecciving inviintions to study housey in other parts of the
South Hams. In pacticular we would like tn sce more examplos of
smoking chombers.
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i. The vomplete history of Saleombe Castle (Fort Charles) is being collentod
I Mre. & Myes. Curry, who now own it From the registers it was
established that the Fort was in use as o dwelling for some vears after the
strvenders in 164G,

Work en these lines is coutluuing this winter, under the auspices of the
Departinent of Extra Mural Sludies, Exelor Thiversity whose vesident
Tutor is Robert Pym Hevondyike, Wost Chavleton, Kingshridee,

A VILLAGE CHURCH BAND AND I''S MUSIC

ROLLD G. wWOODS

The chureh organ is now so universally aceepted as the only liltng instrament
le aceompany Lthe hvinns, anthems and other music of o chureh serviee that we
forget thatl orpans woere hanned from all churches by Parliament in 1641, and
that, although they wore veplacwl in the eathedrals and fovpe ueban chuveles
during the vighteenth century, many village churches were withonl one even as
regenltly as a hdred vears ago. For roughly two eonturice, theveiore, what
singing there was was cither led hy the parish elevk, or by a volunleer choir,
often accompanied by a small band of three to six musicians,

Probably the only genernlly known aceounls of Ehese hands and choirs are those
given by Haddy in "Unider the Groopwood Tree! and clzewhere, and Lthese are

the work of & novelist (n formoer member of o village hand bimself, of courscd
rather than o eritic ov historing. In Irel, the bands have nol atlracted many
historians, though K. H. MacDermaolt, n Sussos vector amed o teained masician,
wrote an excellent aecomnt of the brouds in Sussex, OF eritics there are plenty,
awd there are many sccounts ol alrugples lo improve the musienl life of various
churehes, which begin with the abolition of the band, abwavs aceuszed of plaving
aut of ine, of having an unsuitable reporloive, mxt ol discouraging congregational
singing . There must be some trath in these stilementsx, vl 2 general rige in
the stuwtatds of church mosic was one resull of i Tractarian movement, bat
theve i3 some evidence on the other side also, Canon W, Galpiv, now host
koown far his work on old musiend instraemoenis, heavd a band in Dorse! n 1890,
anl noted thal "nowhere 1s the singing more hearty and congeogalional' . Others
tell of the hours devoled Lo roeheavsal and the pride which the bhand and the vitlige
a5 & whole tool in 168 music,

While information about the bonds and cholrs is seanly enough, stadies of the
music and of kow they plaved and sung, 18 cven move sealtered, Two emadl
collections of Dorsel Covets have heen published, though in medern seltings,
and o fow villages preserve old bynming amongst their carol repevtoire.  (Most

of the choirs went carvol-singing: it was Lheir only source of income, npart
trom what the church paid for strings, vecds, eley This may be hecsise most
of the studies have been of Anglican chuvebes, whose hymn repevioire wasg in
many places Hmiltad to the wetrieal psalter up bo 1851, when "Hymns Ancient
and Modern' appearcil. The Non-contormist churclhies also had their hands and
choirg, and their hymn repertoire, of course, includoed biwe warks of Isnne Watts,
Bhitip Doddridee nnd Charles Wesley ., However, it has been genecalty held that
the music wus of equally limited auality and quantily, apd that there was little
waorlll proscrving in this teadition.
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In Widecombe parish there were bands in the pavish church, in two Muothodist
chapelg and a Congregational chapel, and I have recently had the opportunity to
cxamine some of their music books, generously lent to me by Mr. Hermen
I'rench, whose father and grandfather had played the violin at 1neal serviees.
The range of music is much greater than I expected. Thero ave sver 204 hymn
tunes, ranging (rom famous old tunes like the 'Old Hundredth' to 'Ol Methodigt'
ar 'fuguing’ tunes Like 'Cranrook’ {how banished from chureh use, as it is the
ne for "On Ilkla Moor'). There are settings of the Te Deum, and several
anthems, and theve is a lavge number of choir hymns, a form of mini-pratario
popular in non-conlormist chuvches, There are also a fow items from the handg'
secular repertoive, matches, dances and so on.

All the music has been carefully copied, often in a very fair hand indeed, nnd
it clearly includes a number of tunes written locally. The music oes not
require any extraerdinary technieal skills - the violing seldom go beyond first
position -~ but the choir hymns in particular demand a fair amount of rehearsal,
and make stories of starting weekly rehearsals for the Christmas service in
October seem quile probable.

If Widecombe can produce such an extensive collegtion, there must surely be
a wealth of ather music in other Devonshire villages. [ would be very glad to
know of the locations of ofher music books, and if possible I would ke to
examing them, to compare them with those I afready know, so that a fuller
picture ¢an be buitt up of this forgolten tradition, and, perhaps, a group
found who would try to bring this music to life again.

LOCAL POPULATION STUDIES

A periodical published in agsociation with the Adult Ecucation Department
of the Uversity of Nottingham,

One of the mest prominent features of the mocdern historical scene is the
growing attention which is being paid to the detatled study of social, economic
ud demographic matters at the loeal rather than the national level.

Scholarly local studies, both by pro fessionnis and amateurs, are making
Important contributions to historical knowledge.

LOCAL POPULATION STUDIES was founded in 1968 to provide o link between
Individuals 2nd groups engaged in this work. Tt contnins articles, some of
which are listed overleal, on many aspects of demographic and soctul
questions as they apply to local communitics and small regions. In addition,
cach issue lists local research in progress, devotes spice o engquiries ang

problems and contains a report on the wark of the Cambridzge Group for the IHistory of

Population and Social Structure, ploneers in this country of the powerful histarieal
demographlc methads oviginated in France by Louis Henry andd his colleagues,

Now that Collages of Education and, to a lesser extent, schools are finding
population studies n valuable interdisciplinary activity, there will be, from
time to time articles deseribing such work actually In progress.

The following are amongst the articles which have appeared in
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LOCAL POPULATION STUMES

An approach to Census Returns P, M. UEllott

Aun Enqguiry into Seasonality {n Baptisms

Marvinges and Burials Leslie Bradley

The Hearth Taxes 1662-1680 John Patten

Population Movemend in Seventeenth

Century England Peter Spuiford

A Note on the Incidenge of Tudor Suicide 1L K. L. Haoir

Parish Registers and the Problem  of
Mobility Dessic Malthy

NORTH DEVON MUSEUM PROJECT

Pregident: 8Sir Dennis Stuctey, Bart., J. P, D, L.

Chaivman: Hugh Brooks, M.A.

Hon . Secretary: Migs Alison Grant, B,A ., Park Schoal, Barnstaple
Hon. Treasurer: A G.IR. Hollis, Gurelny's Bank Lid., Bideford,

Area Representatives

cl: Bavastaple 2629
alter G p.m

Bavastaple: R. Ley, 63 The Roek, Pilton, BDavnstaple.

Bideford: B. Hughes, Grenville College, Dideford.  Tel: Bideford 6211

Torrington: [. Pointon, "MNetherne', Yarnstombe. Tel: Newlon Teaeey 297

INTERIM BULLETIN

Nortlh Devon Musenm Project, like societies that exist for the protection of the
arvea's natural benuty and its historic buildings, sceks to proserve North Devon's
heritage and character. s alm is not Lo acquire 2 mere misceliany, bul to pre-
serve objects and recreate techniques and scenes tn terms of the area’s pasl
development and way of lile. Novth Devon Muscum Project seeks therefore Lo
interest, and enlist support from people bolh inside and oulside the area for the
provision of 7 good modern museun scrvice in North Devon, 1L is hoped to
include:

{1) In Barnstaple - 2 central museum with responsibility fov avea museum
adm inistration, and housing archasological tinds, This musewn should,
if possille, be in clese proximity to the new County Library and projected
Record Oflice.

{2y Somcwhere on Torridgeside - o mavilime museum to presexve velics ol the
area's important connection with scafaring and to foster the Link with North
America which has existed for centuries,

{3y Possibily in the Torrington area - a museum of agricultural and industrial
wlevest Lo preserve the vemaing of rural tife and evalts which might other-
wise soon he lost.

.2

N.B. {a) It is intended to diseuss all plans fully with the Board ol the North Devon
Athenaewm with a view to combining nr at least complementing services,

(b} Ilfracombe, Lynton and Seuth Molton have small muscurns which are
"going concerns”, ‘The North Devon Museum Project In no way intends
ta displace these, and will welcome suggestions and/aor su nport (rom
thase concerned with them .

(¢) Considerable archaealogical excavation is envisaged in Barnstaple over
the next few vears, Storage and display facitities for finds will be
impetative

If the area’s heritage is dispersed, sold or destroyed, left to pevish through lack
of proper preservation or storage, or abandoncd through ignorance or complacency,
the people of Nerth Devon both now and in the future will suffer irreparable loss.
To combat this danger, the North Devon Museum Project seeks n muscum service
with professional staff, and pootl display and storage facilities. Existing museum
facilities in the area are tolnlly inadeguate in thesc respects, and cannot properiy
foster increasing public intevest in loecal history, archavology, industrial
archaeology, maritime history, vural Lile, natural history, local geography,
geology and the envirenment, to mention some of the subjects which museums
provide. Good museum facilities are needed aiso by students of all ages; the
Morth Devon Muscum Project seeks to give the Schools' Museum Service, which
adds so mueh to the education of children in more forfenate arens. a hage from
which lo operate. With no main museum nearer than Exeter, forty miles away,
North Uevon is sadly Incking in provision compared with ather parts of the county;
the nrea has an incteasing population to make use of museum amenities, and an
impartant tourist indnslry, for which they would provide 2 consiclerable attraction.

For the above reasons, to which many others could be added, the North Devon
Muscum Project intends to press the County Council to consider its proposals and
act on them . Additionally it hopes to attract grants from outbside hmsts and
government departments and boards whore appropriate {e, g, Department of the
Environment, Department of Fdueation and Science; Area Tourist Baard ete,) A
vigorous publicity campaign will be wounted to arouse intevest. By these and other
methods, it is hoped to make this exeiting project a reality,
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STANNARY LAW: A IISTQRY OF THE MINING LAW OF CORNWALL AND DEVON
by Rebert R, Ponninglon,  Newton Abbol: David & Charles. 19730 229 pp. £3, 30,
15BN O 71653 57853 2

By the nature of their jobs, miners tend te be men apart. This separation was taken
a slep {urther in Poeven and Cornwall wherve o completely different svsiem of law
emerped to govern nol only the mining and smelling of the metal but other aspects

of the Hic of Lhose engaged in the tin industry. The origins of this system aof
stannavy lows s hididen o Lhe mists of history bul Professor Pennington suspests
they derived from three sources: the Cornish element contributed the vague rales abowt
the tounding of stroamwerks, Angloe-Saxon cusloms probably added the veguivemonts
as Lo the {ree status of Lhe miney and these two olements woere nhsovhed by the
Novmans whe also ostablished o colupge svstem, To sdminister the low specind
courts were sel up and there were alse Stannarvy Convocalions or Parlizsments of

the Tioners in both Doevon and Cornwall which wmot inteemittontly to amend ond
improve the stannory laws. While the Tast meoting of o stonnary pnrHament was
hotd as long amo as 1752, slunnary courts conlinued to lunction until the [nte 19th
century.  ‘The {ast ease, brought by o Helslon solicilor, was heard in LEHG,

After discussing these two institubions of the stannarvics, Professor Penndnpton

then deals in turn with the problems of tin bounds, with mining setls and leases,
with the refining and coinage of Lin and with the origins and workings of the cost
ook mining companies, Like the olher institutions of the tin industry, these
companies which evolved from the old Cornish mine partnership, woere it response (o
a particular situation. Reecognising the natere of Lhe mining industry, they
provided that the adventurer's intervest should lte not in the eapital he advanced

bul in the mine itself.  And like the other institutinns, they were affected by
changes i society ab Tavge.  In this particelar cose, the privilege of limited
linbility available after the nots of F856 and 1862 proved altractive so thal during
the 1880s and 18905 most of the cost book companies were converted into Hmited
Hability companies.

Drawing on the records in Truwre, in the Duchy of Cornwall Record Office and in
the Public Record Office as well as on law reports, Professor Pennington hos
told his story systematioally i a litthe dully within the limited tepal context

with which he is obviousty well acquainted,  Bual he scems to have adopted a self-
denyving ovdinanee and vefrained from consulting either lhe voluminous literature
of 19th cenlury texts on mining {aw or more recent accounis of the history of

ithe industry such as George R. Tewis, The Stannarics, Net infreguently the tegad
world could gain from a wider contact with the world af Tarpe - learvacd judge,
rAand who pray nve the Beatles?! - and this is perbaps one of those oceasions,
Professor Penningion ks worked his own lode economically and effoctively ful

it does not comprise the whole of the field.

Walter Blinchinton,
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TRANSPORT AND SHIPOWNING IN THE WEST COUNTRY, ed H.E.8, Flgher
and W.E. Minchinton. Exeter Papera in Economic History Ko, 7.
University of Exeter., 1873. Tl pp. Price 75p. '

This is the seventh cellectlon ol papers resulting from seminars on West
Country economic history held at Dartington Hall in 1971 and 1872, Six
papers arve included in this number. Michael Handford writes on the
construction of the Stroud Canal eventually completed in 1779 and outlines the
difficulties technical, financial, legal, and locally political that the clothier
backers had to face over [ifty years before success. Anthony Northway
examines the Devon lishing fleet between 1760 and 1820 and shows that echanges
in the type of boat and methods of fishing were not matched by any change in the
ownership ol the fishing fleet to any greal degree. Larger vessels, thoso
that could be called ships engaged in trade, are the concern of Robin Craig

who shows the effects of industrial expansion elsewhere in Britain and of the
building of larger iron ships on the shipowning indusiry of the South West.

To come ashore to the motor car, Peter Kemedy uses one of the untapped
treasures of the Devon Record Office to show where the [irst cars werc
registered in Devon.  The resulis are unexpected and surprizsing.

Less surprising, though still slightly anomalous, is who owned them.

The only non South Western paper relates bo buses. John Hibbs examines the
eflects of legislation on the development of bus services in this country.
Although examined in its national context, buses and their lack are obviously of
concern to Devonians, Finally John Gillman shows, with a bonus of six delight-
tul photographs of the port of Porlock Weir, how useful old photographs can

e to builet up a picture of the activities ol a portl in the past, Thisisa
stimulating collection in that the authers indicate in most cases that there

is much more to be done in these fields.  In the national context some of the
subjects studied heve ave very small seale but, as the editors point out, [ocally
they were of immense and often unmeasurable importance and most people, afier
all, were and still are, Ioecals somewhere.

SAILING SHIPS AND EMIGRANTS IN VICTORIAN TIMES

by Aligen Grant. Then and There series. Longman 1872. 112 pp.

This book though written for schools should be of great interest to all
PRavon readers. Alison Grant, whaose namce appears elsewhere in this
magazine, has combined in one attractively produced book the history of
oue Barnstaple ship the "Lady Ebrington', the plight of the poor labouring
clags in N. Devon in the mid-nineteenth century, the conditions emigrants
had to put up with on board ship and when they arrived in Ausiralia and
New Zealand and the growth and decline of a local enterprise, the North
Devon ghipping Company. Barnstaple is the foeus for all this and it is
particularly happy that it is possible to combine the log of the ship with
letters from emigrants who sailed in her and did or did not make good in
Australia and detailed knowledge of the people who hacked and financed her
building.  The tale is in facl as complete as it can be and told in very human
terms. There are numerons illustrations often, happily of Devon and
Ausiralia juxtaposed - what they left and what they found - and local bitlheads
advertisements and portrait photographs, This is surely Local History at
its best with the sources carefully examined and the result attractively
presented,



A GUIDE TC THE INDUSTRIAL ARCHAEQLOGY OF PLYMOUTH AND
MILLBROOK, CORNWALL, edited by Cynthia Gaskell Brown, Plymouth:
WEA 8SW IMstrlet, 1973, 52 pp. 4 maps, 20p.

Written by eight contributors including the editor, this valuable little
voolklet is mainly the product of a WEA class in industrial archacology which met
in 1971-72. Topies covered include the Eddystone Lighthouse, the Breakwater,
the Roval Albert Bridge, Sutton Harbour, Millbay Docks and the Hoyal Naval
Dockynrd, while some articles descrine districts - Plymstock, Oveston and Hooe,
Stonehouse, Millbrook - and others, particular hranches of the subject - iron foundries
and railways. Some articles are followed by useful deseriplive tours of the
remains. B, Nickolg' article on Sutten Rarhour is particularly noleworthy,

Treatment is inevitably variable at this stage, as the editor admits.
For example, the clnsive Wheal Whitleigh might have received 2 mention along
with Wheal Movieigh. Although its site cannot be traced, there are others
treated here which are no longer visible, e. g. most of the foundries.
Some very thorough fieldwork bas been done bul the list of Plymouth limekilus
is incomplete and, possibly for reasons of space, some relevant archive material
is not mentioned.  For example, the sale notice of Mare's fowudry (page 41}
grives considerable detail aboul its equipment at the time,

Clearly work is continuing. The WEA must therefore keep this group in
sessian and produce [urther editions.  The editor is to he congratulated on the
range covered by this pamphlct. Clearly printed and iliustrated, the booklet
is & most weleome addition to industrial archaeology studies in the south west.

J. W. Perkins

INDUSTRIAL ARCHAEOQOLOGY IN DEVON, by Walter Minghinton.
Dartington Amenity Research Truat Publication No, 1. 2nd Editlon. 1973. 32pp.

The fact that theve has had to be a reprint and a second cdition of this
publicalion shows its popularity.  This secomd edition has the same
illustrations and Vists of sites ns the first but the text has been expanded and
corrected where necessary, in some cases sadly enougl to include demolitions.
It constitutes an admirable outline puide to the Industirial Archeeology of
Dlevon but it is not and does nat claim to he exhavstive.  There are now
gides to Tndustrial Archaology of Excter and of Plymonth. The next stage
perhaps is to prodice complete guides to districts of the County.

One gap on the map that stands out is the area between Tiverton, Barustaple,
Holsworthy and Okehampton, This i8 somewhat unknown country
higtovically anyway. Ita lack of industrinl sites is intevesting.
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THE ARCHAEQOLOGY OF THE INDUSTRIAL REVOLUTION, by Brian Bracegirdle,
Helnemann, 1973, 208 pp. + 48 pp, platea, £8,50

Wilh 48 pages of eolour plates and 2 [urther 156 black and white photographs, this
ig the most lavish and attractive hook on industrial archmology so far published in
Britain.  Ranging further than the chronologicat confines of the classical period of
the incustrial revolution (1760-1830) which its titic sugyesty, this book contains
casays by well-known writers in the field of industrial archaeclogy, such as
Rex Wailes, L.T.C, Rolt, Neil Cossens, Jennifer Tann and others, on iron and
steel, inland waterways, vailways and other means of eommunication, natural
sources of power, steam power, clectrical power, coal and other fucls and industrial
buildings.  But oddly enough the Lextile industry dees not really find a place here.
Aceording to its editor, the purpose ol this volure is two-fold:  te provide a useful
referenet source for key sites, some of which readers may have beon umable to
visit and some of which may have been destroyed since the pictures were made.
Inevitably beecause the volume coversg the whole of Greal Britain, any particular area
is represented by only a limited nunber of sites about which there could well be
argument. Thus the Bxeter, Grand Western and Tavistock canals, the Posthridpe
elapper bridpe and the Royal Albert Bridge, Saltash, the Plymouth Breakwater and
the Wheal Betsy engine house {eatled oddly here Cornish engine house, Mary Tavy),
which comprise the Devon representation, provide no more than a somewhat random
selection ul iddustrial archaeology siles of some importanee in the county.

Adthough the wmap is supposed to contain main waterways, canals, towns and the
prinetpal sites mentioned in the text, it unfortunately does not mark all the west
country sites. It does however show, much to many westcountrymen's surprise,

the Grand Western Canal as a continuous waterway linking Bridpwater and Exeter |

The seeond editorial purpose is o communicate the visual appeal and iutellectual
foscination of industrial avchacology to readers who are relative newcomers to its
sindy. And this it does magnificently. Many of Llte photogruphs, both black and white
and celour, arve splendidly effective. At its publication price this is scarcely a
buok within the means of every readev bul it certainly provides a fine visual and
verbal inteeduction te industrial archacologsy. If you cannef afford to buy it, at
least borrow U [rom your locat library and enjoy it vicariously that way.

Walter Minchiaton

DEVON NEWSPAPERS - A FINDING LiST

This lists all Devon Newspapers alphabettcally, includes thelr later
titles with cross references where appropriate and indieates where

they ean be scen mid what jssues survive. The eompilation bas been
done by Lorna Swmith of Torbay Public Library and the publication

and compilation made possible by John Pike, Torbay Rorough Librarian,

Copics may be obtained by members for 10p on application o the
Scerctary, ¢/o The Community Council of Devon, County Hall, Exeter,
EX2 4GD. To non-members the price is 20p.
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THE WITCHCRAFT AND FOLKLORE OF DARTMOOR, by Ruth £, St. Leger-Gordon, I some cases Mrs. SU Leger-Gordon suppest logicn) explanstions lor ties SUpi-
2nd edition, Wakefteld: E,P. Publishing Ltd., 1973, 186 pp. £2.50. stitions and tales and somebimes sountds sceptical of them bud she admits there 15 an
ISBN O 86409 888 2.

undeniable aura of evil which haunts certain areas ol the moor and allects certain
peuple, some of whom ave now to the arvea and kaow nothing of the many legends

and local feavs. Maybe such places, frequently the sites of prehistoric or
o ‘ _ ] ) ) mining seitlements, retain the stored-up emotinng of their eavlier violent inhabitants
This book is a collection of the legends assoctated with Davtmoor, the ghasts which can atfect the most sengitive of us today.  Or mayhe it is the isolation
which arce said to haunl it aul the wilcherafl, both black and white, whieh has beon atdl unrelenting natural forees of the monr, so different from to(l} y's l)lLJéy urbanised
wand is sUdL practised in the aren The author peints eut that almest without exeoption life, which has this effect on some pvoplc.‘ A

these tiles are of a ghoomy or feacsome nature, refleeting, she sugpests, the grim and
forbidding country with whieh they ave associnted and also the tendency for pleasant

Originally published in 1065, this hook has now been reviscd by making

thin;{s ttlhhc [orgatten while the fearsome and horrifie stick in t}}(:‘m inel, Fn‘ alterations in the text where possible and adding a number of pustscripts where,
considering the fegends and folklore, Mrs. St. Loper-Goredon div L(_tcs the storics given the photolithograpbic lorm ol reproduction, theve was nat room to add new
associated with Dartmoor inlo three groups:  Hhese which ave vaciations of tales material in {18 covreet place.

Foune in olher parts of the countrey;  thweee of o sterveotyped nnture which have been
provided with a local setting and a well-known lovpl person as 'star';  and thoso
which have oviginated on Darlmoor. She recounts Lthe legends associnted with
the various stone ctveles amwl other sione landmarks of Lthe moor and the suporstitions Cella M. King
which surround both pools and rivers. Porhaps the [ew aecumulations of still

witer, many of them flooded mine workings, has led o their being regacded with :

suspicion and fear white it used to be widely believed that the River Dart annually

demanded o human Lile. Uver the eenturies the houses on aned around Dartmaoor

have accumulated more than theirv [aiv shave of ghosts, both human and animal,

but perhaps a featurce unigue 1o the area {s a ghost eottuge whieh has appeared to

several people in regent years in g wood near Haytor. The raven was generally

regavded as an dll-omen on the moor while members ol Hie Oxenham family were

warned ol impending death by Lhe appearance of a white bivd. Iven today ciorlein

parts of the oo appear to cmanale some evil influence which is felt by those mast

sensilive Lo such things and riders koow that there are ceviain places where theiv

horses will not pass. Black witchsralt seems to have disappeared froon the moor

although there is still o linpoering helicl in its power, But in some plages while

witcherafl is still very much abive in the forvin of charming wiets and coring

ring-worm and shingles by the same inexplicable methaods.

publicity in the lasl decade bas led to o doeeline in the power of some of these

"charmers' who are also decreasing as the younyer geperition hecome more

aaphisticaled. A number of ancient chavms Tor sech cures ave guoeted and inomany

cases the magic eirele plays o pavt.

In ol cases the author has iried Lo lrace the most recent references to these
stories and sightings, some of which are still quite bively. Some of the stories
are based on the grim {acts of Hife on the moor:  (or example. the travelier staying
in Warren House Inn, who, on lfinding o corpse in the chest in his room, was told
" tis only feyvther., Uz zalted un down against when uz can z2et un up along to
Lydiford", 2 rominder of the days when all moor~dwellors had to e uried in their ¢
hoame pavish cemetery ot Lydiord, always a grim and somelimes an impossible
journey in the winter. r, a wacning of the danger ol Dartmoor bops, the
moorman who finding o hat floating in the marsh and discovering a head beneath it
aghed "what be you doin’ there? " and received the reply, "Sitting on wme "oss™,
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